

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


WITH BOARD IN PERSON AT COE 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on August 4, 2021.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting August 4, 2021 - Page 1 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session Interdistrict 
Transfer Appeals Hearings 


5:30 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


2. Interdistrict Transfer Appeals Hearings Format: Parent/Guardian/Advocate will have 5 
minutes to present the case for the appeal. District 
will have 5 minutes to present the case for denial of 
appeal. The Trustees will ask clarifying questions. 
Trustees will vote in Open Session immediately 
following the Report of Actions in Closed Session. 


   
2.1. Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing Student 


#1 
5:35 p.m. Information for possible action 


3. Convene Open Session 5:50 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome  


3.2. Report of Closed Session  


3.3. Vote on IDT Appeal Student #1  


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City 
School Board Members appreciate your presence 
and your comments regarding items not on the 
agenda are valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board Bylaw protocols, Trustees will not comment on 
Public Comments during this time. 


   


5. General Public Business   


   


1/42







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


WITH BOARD IN PERSON AT COE 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on August 4, 2021.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting August 4, 2021 - Page 2 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


5.1. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


6:00 p.m. 


5.1.1. Educational Services  


5.1.1.1. Consultant Services Agreement: SEEDs for 
Restorative Justice Training 


Recommendation: Approve the consultant services 
agreement with SEEDs to provide Restorative Justice 
training at Santa Cruz High School 


5.1.1.2. Consultant Services Agreement: Larry 
Ainsworth from Rigorous Curriculum Design 


Recommendation: Approve the consultant services 
agreement with Larry Ainsworth to support training and 
facilitation of our Curriculum and Assessment Team 


5.1.1.3. Consultant Services Agreement: Jennifer 
Russo 


Recommendation: Approve the consultant services 
agreement with Jennifer Russo to support and facilitate 
professional development at Bay View Elementary 


5.1.1.4. Edgenuity Contract Renewal Recommendation: Approve the Edgenuity Contract 
renewal at Branciforte Small Schools 


5.1.1.5. Consultant Services Agreement: WestEd 
Professional Development 


Recommendation: Approve the consultant services 
agreement with WestEd to support training and 
facilitation of professional development at Branciforte 
Middle School 


5.1.1.6. Consultant Services Agreement: Dr. Martha 
Merchant with UCSF Hearts 


Recommendation: Approve the consult services 
agreement with UCSF Hearts for Dr. Martha Merchant to 
provide professional development to Gateway School. 


5.1.1.7. ThoughtExchange Membership Renewal Recommendation: Approve the contract to renew the 
District’s membership with ThoughtExchange. 


5.2. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


5.2.1. Governance/Superintendent . 


5.2.1.1. New Business: Board Policy Revisions 
Required by Assembly Bills 130 & 104 


6:05 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the revised board 
policies as required by Assembly Bills 130 & 104 


6. Adjournment 
 


   


7. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


2/42







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


WITH BOARD IN PERSON AT COE 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on August 4, 2021.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting August 4, 2021 - Page 3 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


8. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


8. Adjournment  
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Special Meeting on August 4, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Regular Meeting on August 18, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Regular Meeting on September 1, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on September 22, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on October 6, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3/42







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


WITH BOARD IN PERSON AT COE 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on August 4, 2021.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting August 4, 2021 - Page 4 of 5 


6. The Regular Meeting on October 20, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on November 3, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


17. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


18. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


19. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


20. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4/42







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


WITH BOARD IN PERSON AT COE 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on August 4, 2021.  


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting August 4, 2021 - Page 5 of 5 


21. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5/42







AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.1.                   


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM Consultant Services Agreement: SEEDS for Restorative  
Justice Training 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Services Agreement for SEEDS, Restorative Justice training. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the first year of Full Restorative Justice implementation and professional development at 
Santa Cruz High School. SEEDS provides training to schools which centers around understanding 
the fundamental principles of Restorative Justice, as well as the implementation of key 
practices. Restorative Justice practices aim to establish a positive school culture and address 
the district’s strategic focus area on school connectedness.   
 
The program will be evaluated based on attendance, grades, discipline data and evaluations 
completed by participants.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$17,500 Title IV  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 


 
Prepared by Gail Atlansky, Director of Student Services 


6/42







7/42







AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: Larry Ainsworth from Rigorous  


Curriculum Design 
  
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
  
FROM:                      Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:               Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Services Agreement for Rigorous Curriculum Design training by Larry 
Ainsworth.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools continues its work to provide a guaranteed and viable curriculum for all 
students with the formation of Curriculum and Assessment Teams to do the important work of 
designing aligned units of study across the district. The 21-22 teams will include: 
 


● Elementary Curriculum and Assessment Team 
● District English Learner Team 
● Secondary Curriculum and Assessment Teams in 


○ English 
○ Social Studies 
○ Math 
○ Science  


 
Larry Ainsworth is a former educator of 20 years and the former Executive Director of 
Professional Development at the Leadership and Learning Center in Colorado. He is also the 
author of 16 education-based books and a professional education consultant. Mr. Ainsworth 
will focus on training teachers how to construct an integrated teaching and learning system 
grounded in state standards with a focus on rigor and high impact strategies.  
 
This series of workshops will take place over five sessions, each three hours per session. The 
topics being covered are the following: 
 


● “Big Picture” of Integrated Teaching & Learning System and Priority Standards 
● “Unwrapping” Standards with Levels of Rigor for Greater Teacher Clarity 
● Learning Targets & Success Criteria 
● Quality Common Formative Assessments and Learning Progressions with Quick Progress 


Checks.  
 


8/42







AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.2. 


Teachers participating in the training will provide feedback to the inform this ongoing 
professional learning. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$15,000 ESSER II (Restricted) 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


9/42







10/42







11/42







  AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.3. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: Jennifer Russo 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve consultant services agreement for Jennifer Russo, Teacher Trainer from Teachers 
College New York, 2021-22. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ms. Russo worked with the Bay View staff in the 2020-21 school year as part of the remediation 
plan for Additional Targeted School Improvement (ATSI).  Ms. Russo will continue her work to 
guide the staff to develop a shared understanding of how to create literacy lessons to optimize 
learning for all students, with special attention to students with highest needs (i.e English 
Learners, Latinx, special education). She will use protocols to guide staff to strategically design 
lessons that will help personalize instruction and meet the diverse needs of all students.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$10,750 Title II (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


12/42







13/42







14/42







15/42







16/42







  AGENDA ITEM: 
5.1.1.4.  


  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Edgenuity Contract Renewal 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the Edgenuity contract for the Ark Independent 
Studies & Alternative Family Education. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Edgenuity provides a full suite of standards-aligned online curriculum for middle and high 
school students in English Language Arts, math, science, and social studies. This online 
curriculum allows students to be self-paced, and has a pretesting feature, which allows 
students to spend more time on what they need and less time on content they have already 
mastered, therefore, students have learning that is individualized to meet their needs. 
 
Edgenuity curriculum will be used at the Ark for independent studies grades 6-12 and provides 
grades 9-12 with an A-G curriculum option. Edgenuity curriculum will also be used for all high 
school credit recovery courses. Additionally, in accordance with updated Education Code on 
Independent Studies and home school options for students, Edgenuity will be the online 
curriculum that is available to students in grades 6-12 who are enrolled in Alternative Family 
Education homeschool program at Branciforte Small Schools.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$18,750 SB86 (Restricted)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


17/42







Edgenuity Inc.
8860 E. Chaparral Road
Suite 100
Scottsdale AZ 85250
877-725-4257


Price Quote for Services
Santa Cruz City School District


Soquel CA
Account Number 11034
Quote Number 177850


Total $18,750.00
Date 08/1/2021


 
 


Edgenuity will audit enrollment count throughout the year. If more enrollments are found to be in use than purchased, Edgenuity will invoice the 
customer for the additional usage.


 This quote is subject to Edgenuity Inc. Standard Terms and Conditions (“Terms and Conditions”). These Terms and Conditions are available at http://
www.edgenuity.com/edgenuity-standard-terms-and-conditions-of-sale.pdf, may change without notice and are incorporated by this reference. By signing this quote 
or by submitting a purchase order or form purchasing document, Customer explicitly agrees to these Terms and Conditions resulting in a legally binding agreement. 
To the fullest extent permitted under applicable law, all pricing information contained in this quote is confidential, and may not be shared with third parties without 
Edgenuity's written consent. 


Santa Cruz City School District Edgenuity Inc. Representative


Signature:  


Print Name:  


Title:  


Date:  


 


Not valid unless accompanied by a purchase order. Please specify a shipping address if applicable. All order documentation can be submitted electronically at 
https://edgenuity.formstack.com/forms/ar. Alternatively you can e-mail this quote, the purchase order and order documentation to AR@edgenuity.com or fax to 
480-423-0213.


 


page 1 of 1


8860 E. Chaparral Rd., Ste 100, Scottsdale, AZ 85250 877-725-4257 Fax: 480-423-0213 www.edgenuity.com


Payment Schedule Contract Start Contract End


08/1/2021 07/31/2022


Site Description Comment End Date Per Unit Cost Qty Cost


 Digital Libraries 6-12 Comprehensive All Site 
License (MS and HS content for math, ELA, 
science, social studies, electives, AP, world 
languages, Virtual Tutors; excludes eDynamic 
Learning and Purpose Prep)


 07/31/2022 $18,000.00 1 $18,000.00


 Professional Development Webinar Training  07/31/2022 $750.00 1 $750.00


1. ARK INDEPENDENT STUDIES    


Subtotal $18,750.00


Total $18,750.00


 


18/42







 AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:    Consultant Services Agreement: WestEd Professional  
Development 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the partnership agreement between WestEd and Branciforte Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Branciforte Middle School will continue work with WestEd to support the capacity development 
of site leadership and staff. This work will add to and build upon Branciforte Middle School’s 
previous work with WestEd that focused on Integrated English Language Development and will 
build upon their ongoing work focusing on accountable talk, oral language development, visible 
learning strategies, and making a bridge to academic writing. All professional learning will be 
deeply connected to enhancing, understanding, and utilizing the California English Language 
Development Standards, and will include high-yield pedagogical practices that embody teaching 
content and language in tandem. Two strands of support will be provided, one for teachers and 
one for site leaders, to ensure capacity is built for both instructional shifts and systemic support 
for sustaining the work. The work will also leverage the existing structures at Branciforte Middle 
School, such as Professional Learning Communities. 
 
WestEd is a national nonprofit agency with a 50-year track record of delivering high quality, 
sustained professional services to schools and districts that enable them to improve student 
achievement, enhance educator effectiveness, and strengthen school leadership.  
 
California Dashboard CAASPP data in English Language Arts, School Wide Writing data, 
classroom formative writing data, and other qualitative and quantitative data points will 
measure the progress and effectiveness of this work. 
 
This work directly supports the schools single plan for student achievement goals and the 
district wide focus on improving instruction for English Learners. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$25,500, Title III (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


19/42







 AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.5. 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
 
  


20/42







21/42







22/42







  AGENDA ITEM: 
5.1.1.6.  


  


                        


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: Dr. Martha Merchant with UCSF 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 14, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Ed Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve consultant services agreement for Dr. Martha Merchant from UCSF Hearts to provide 
professional development for Gateway School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Federal law requires that public school district make Title I and Title II funds available to private 
schools that submit plans and meet federal criteria for receiving the funds. Dr. Merchant will 
provide Gateway’s faculty training in trauma informed education and healing-centered best 
practices.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$4,000 Title II (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


23/42







24/42







25/42







AGENDA ITEM: 5.1.1.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Thoughtexchange Membership Renewal 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the quote from Thoughtexchange to renew the district membership.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Thoughtexchange allows leaders to engage with participants in structured online interactions, 
called exchanges. Thoughtexchange partners with hundreds of districts throughout North 
America to help them have more meaningful conversations with their communities about a 
range of important topics. It has helped many districts quickly learn what matters to their 
communities, build trust, and create better strategic plans. 
 
Throughout the pandemic the district has used Thoughtexchange to start meaningful online 
conversations with stakeholders to learn about priorities and values. The platform has also 
allowed the District to gather feedback and input from staff and students in real time during in-
person and virtual meetings. The district will continue to use Thoughtexchange as a 
communication tool to gather feedback from all stakeholders. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$12,600.00   LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


26/42







Invoice Date: 07/29/2021 Terms: Now Due Date: 07/29/2021 Customer Id: CUST01027 Page 1


This invoice is governed by the terms and conditions of the signed agreement between the parties. All additional or conflicting 
terms or conditions in any prior or subsequent document or other communication are hereby expressly rejected.


Bill To:
Santa Cruz City Schools
133 Mission Street
Santa Cruz, California  95060
United States


Item Quantity Unit Price Amount


Leader Room
Contract Term: 08/01/2021 - 07/31/2022


1 $12,600.00 $12,600.00


SUBTOTAL $12,600.00


TAX $0.00


TOTAL $12,600.00


ACH or Wire Transfer: Check Remittance:


Account Name: Fulcrum Management Solutions Inc.
Account #: 1895-41830-7
ABA/Routing #: 121137522
Swift Code: MNBDUS33
Bank Name and Address: 
Comerica Bank 
226 Airport Parkway
San Jose, CA 95110


Fulcrum Management Solutions Inc.
PO BOX 671633 
Dallas, TX 75267-1633


INVOICE
Phone: 800-361-9027 Invoice #: INV3059
Email: accounts.receivable@thoughtexchange.com Invoice Date: 07/29/2021
FEIN # : 35-2506340 Due Date: 07/29/2021
Link to our W9 Reference:


Payment Terms: Now
Currency: USD


27/42







    


                                                                                                                    AGENDA ITEM: 5.2.1.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Board Policy Revisions Required by Assembly Bills 130 & 104 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 4, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised board policies as required by Assembly Bills 130 & 104.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
State legislature recently passed Assembly Bill 130 & Assembly Bill 104, both of which require 
local education agencies to adopt revised policies before the start of the 21-22 school year. 
 
Assembly Bill 130 mandates local education agencies to provide an independent study program 
for students who would be put at risk by in person instruction. Board policy 6158 reflects these 
legislative changes. 
 
Assembly Bill 104 is related to new required retention protocols and High School grade changes 
and new minimum graduation requirements for last year’s seniors and this year’s seniors. 
Board policies 6146.1 and 5123 reflect these legislative changes. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


28/42







Policy 5123: Promotion/Acceleration/Retention    Status: ADOPTED  
Original Adopted Date: 02/23/2011                                                                                                                                        |               


The Governing Board expects students to progress through each grade level within one school 


year. To accomplish this, instruction should accommodate the variety of ways that students learn 


and include strategies for addressing academic deficiencies when needed. 


Students shall progress through the grade levels by demonstrating growth in learning and 


meeting grade-level standards of expected student achievement. 


When high academic achievement is evident, the Superintendent or designee may recommend a 


student for acceleration into a higher grade level. The student's maturity level shall be taken into 


consideration in making a determination to accelerate a student. 


Supplemental Student Retention Process for Eligible Students 


If a student is in grades K-11, and has received a deficient grade of D, F, N, No Pass, or an 


equivalent grade in at least one-half of their courses for the 2020-2021 school year (“eligible 


student”), the student’s parent/guardian may make a written request to retain the student 


in their 2020-2021 grade level for the 2021-2022 school year.  


Upon receiving a written request from a parent/guardian of an eligible student to retain 


their child for the 2021-2022 school year, the district shall offer the parent a consultation 


with the parent, the student, an administrator and a teacher. The consultation must occur 


within 30 calendar days of receiving the written request. 


The district shall have the ultimate authority of deciding whether to retain a student. The 


district must notify the eligible student’s parent or guardian of the final retention decision 


within 10 calendar days of the consultation. 


Retention Practice 


Teachers shall identify students who should be retained or who are at risk of being retained at 


their current grade level as early as possible in the school year and as early in their school careers 


as practicable. Such students shall be identified at the following grade levels: (Education Code 


48070.5) 


1. Between grades 2 and 3 


2. Between grades 3 and 4 


3. Between grades 4 and 5 


4. Between the end of the intermediate grades and the beginning of the middle school 


grades 


5. Between the end of the middle school grades and the beginning of the high school grades 


29/42







Students shall be identified for retention on the basis of failure to meet minimum levels of 


proficiency, as indicated by grades and the following additional indicators of academic 


achievement: 


District wide grade level assessments 


Students between grades 2 and 3 and grades 3 and 4 shall be identified primarily on the basis of 


their proficiency in reading. Proficiency in reading, English language arts, and mathematics shall 


be the basis for identifying students between grades 4 and 5, between intermediate and middle 


school grades, and between middle school grades and high school grades. (Education Code 


48070.5) 


If a student does not have a single regular classroom teacher, the Superintendent or designee 


shall specify the teacher(s) responsible for the decision to promote or retain the student. 


The teacher’s decision to promote or retain a student may be appealed in accordance with AR 


5123 – Promotion/Acceleration/Retention. 


When any student in grades 2-9 is recommended for retention or is identified as being at risk for 


retention, the Superintendent or designee shall offer an appropriate program of remedial 


instruction to assist the student in meeting grade-level expectations. (Education Code 48070.5) 


 


30/42







Policy 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements    Status: ADOPTED  
Original Adopted Date: 05/11/2011       |         Last Revised Date: 06/02/2021         |         Last Reviewed Date: 06/02/2021   


 


 


The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to successfully complete the high school 


course of study and obtain a diploma that represents their educational achievement and increases 


their opportunities for postsecondary education and employment. 


 


Course Requirements 
 


To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete the following courses in grades 9-12, 


with each course being one year unless otherwise specified: 


1. Three courses in English  (Education Code 51225.3) 


  


2. Two courses in mathematics  (Education Code 51225.3) 


 


At least one mathematics course, or a combination of the two mathematics courses, shall 


meet or exceed state academic content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I. 


Completion of such coursework prior to grade 9 shall satisfy the Algebra I or 


Mathematics I requirement, but shall not exempt a student from the requirement to 


complete two mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 51224.5) 


 


Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion 


of an approved computer science course that is classified as a "category c" course based 


on the "a-g" course requirements for college admission.  (Education Code 51225.3, 


51225.35) 


  


3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences  (Education Code 


51225.3) 


  


4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world 


history, culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and 


civics; and a one-semester course in economics  (Education Code 51225.3) 


  


5. One course in visual or performing arts, world language, or career technical education 


(CTE).  For purposes of this requirement, a course in American Sign Language shall be 


deemed a course in world language.  (Education Code 51225.3) 


 


To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned 


to the CTE model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of 


Education.  (Education Code 51225.3) 


  


31/42







6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted 


pursuant to other sections of the Education Code  (Education Code 51225.3) 


 


Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the 


Board shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance 


with law. 


 


Exemptions from District-Adopted Graduation Requirements 
 


District students are required to complete graduation course requirements specified above, 


including the requirements imposed by Education Code 51225.3 and those adopted by the Board. 


However, a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a 


military family, or migrant student who transfers into the district or between district schools any 


time after completing the second year of high school, or a newly arrived immigrant student who 


is in the third or fourth year of high school and is participating in a newcomer program, shall be 


exempted from any graduation requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to 


statewide course requirements. This exemption shall not apply if the Superintendent or designee 


makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to 


graduate by the end of the fourth year of high school. Within 30 days of the transfer or of the 


commencement of participation in a newcomer program, as applicable, the Superintendent or 


designee shall notify any eligible student of the availability of the exemption and whether the 


student qualifies for it.  (Education Code 51225.1) 


 


The Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee shall exempt or waive specific course 


requirements for foster youth, homeless students, children of military families, or students 


in grades 11 or 12 during the 2020-2021 school year who are not on track to graduate in 


four years from all coursework and requirements adopted by the Board that are in 


addition to statewide coursework requirements, in accordance with Education Code 51225, 


51225.1, 51225.3, and 49701. 


 


Students enrolled in grades 11 or 12 during the 2020-2021 school year who are not on track 


to graduate in the 2020-2021 or 2021-2022 school year shall be provided with the 


opportunity to complete the statewide minimum coursework required for graduation. The 


Superintendent of Superintendent’s designee may offer a fifth year of high school 


instruction, credit recovery options, or other opportunities that allow for the completion of 


statewide minimum coursework. (Education Code 51225, 51225.3) 


 


 


Retroactive Diplomas 
 


Any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school year and met all 


applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination 


shall be granted a high school diploma.  (Education Code 51413) 


 


32/42







In addition, the district may retroactively grant high school diplomas to former students 


who:  (Education Code 48204.4, 51430, 51440) 


1. Departed California against their will while in grade 12 and did not receive a diploma 


because the departure interrupted their education, provided that they were in good 


academic standing at the time of the departure 


 


Persons may be considered to have departed California against their will if they were in 


custody of a government agency and were transferred to another state, were subject to a 


lawful order from a court or government agency that authorized their removal from 


California, were subject to a lawful order and were permitted to depart California before 


being removed from California pursuant to the lawful order, were removed or were 


permitted to depart voluntarily pursuant to the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 


or departed due to other circumstances determined by the district that are consistent with 


the purposes of Education Code 48204.4. 


 


In determining whether to award a diploma under these circumstances, the 


Superintendent or designee shall consider any coursework that may have been completed 


outside of the United States or through online or virtual courses. 


  


2. Were interned by order of the federal government during World War II or are honorably 


discharged veterans of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that 


they were enrolled in a district school immediately preceding the internment or military 


service and did not receive a diploma because their education was interrupted due to the 


internment or military service in those wars 


 


Deceased former students who satisfy these conditions may be granted a retroactive 


diploma to be received by their next of kin. 


  


3. Are veterans who entered the military service of the United States while in grade 12 and 


who had satisfactorily completed the first half of the work required for grade 12 in a 


district school 


  


4. Were in their senior year of high school during the 2019-20 school year, were in good 


academic standing and on track to graduate at the end of the 2019-20 school year as of 


March 1, 2020, and were unable to complete the statewide graduation requirements as a 


result of the COVID-19 crisis 


Honorary Diplomas 
 


The Board may grant an honorary high school diploma to:  (Education Code 51225.5) 


33/42







1. An international exchange student who has not completed the course of study ordinarily 


required for graduation and who is returning to the student's home country following the 


completion of one academic school year in the district 


  


2. A student who is terminally ill 


The honorary diploma shall be clearly distinguishable from the regular diploma of graduation 


awarded by the district.  (Education Code 51225.5) 


  


34/42







 


 


The Governing Board authorizes independent study as an optional alternative instructional strategy 
for students whose needs may be best met through study outside of the regular classroom setting. 
Independent study shall offer a means of individualizing the educational plan to serve students who 
desire a more challenging educational experience, whose health or other personal circumstances make 
classroom attendance difficult, who are unable to access course(s) due to scheduling problems, and/or 
who need to make up credits or fill gaps in their learning. As necessary to meet student needs, 
independent study may be offered on a full-time basis or on a part-time basis in conjunction with 
part- or full-time classroom study. 


 
The Superintendent or designee may provide a variety of independent study opportunities, including, 
but not limited to, through a program or class within a comprehensive school, an alternative school or 
program of choice, a charter school, and an online course. 


 


A student's participation in independent study shall be voluntary. (Education Code 51747, 51749.5) 


 
Independent study for each student shall be under the general supervision of a district 
employee who possesses a valid certification document pursuant to Education Code 44865 or 
an emergency credential pursuant to Education Code 44300. Students' independent study shall 
be coordinated, evaluated, and documented, as prescribed by law and reflected in the 
accompanying administrative regulation. (Education Code 51747.5) 


The minimum period of time for any independent study option shall be three consecutive school days. 


General Independent Study Requirements 


 
For the 2021-22 school year, the district shall offer independent study, as specified in 
Education Code 51745, to meet the educational needs of students unless the district has 
obtained a waiver. (Education Code 51745) 


 
For the 2022-23 school year and thereafter, the Superintendent or designee may continue to 
offer and approve independent study for an individual student upon determining that the student is 
prepared to meet the district's requirements for independent study and is likely to succeed in 
independent study as well as or better than the student would in the regular classroom setting. 


 
Because excessive leniency in the duration of independent study assignments may result in a student 
falling behind peers and increase the risk of dropping out of school, independent study assignments 
shall be completed no more than one week after assigned for all grade levels and types of program. 
However, when necessary based on the specific circumstances of the student's approved program, the 
Superintendent or designee may allow for a longer period of time between the date an assignment 
is made and when it is due, up to the termination date of the agreement. 


 
An evaluation shall be conducted to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in 
independent study whenever the student fails to make satisfactory educational progress and/or 
misses three assignments. Satisfactory educational progress shall be determined based on all of 
the following indicators: (Education Code 51747) 


1. The student’s achievement and engagement in the independent study program, as 
indicated by the student’s performance on applicable student-level measures of student 
achievement and engagement specified in Education Code 52060 


 
2. The completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that evidence that the 


student is working on assignments 


 


Policy 6158: Independent Study 


Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2005 | Last Revised Date: 07/01/2021 | Last Reviewed 
Date: 07/01/2021 


 


35/42







3. Learning required concepts, as determined by the supervising teacher 


 


4. Progress towards successful completion of the course of study or individual course, as 
determined by the supervising teacher 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in independent study are 


provided with content aligned to grade level standards at a level of quality and intellectual challenge 


substantially equivalent to in- person instruction. For high schools, this shall include access to all 


courses offered by the district for graduation and approved by the University of California or the 


California State University as creditable under the A–G admissions criteria. (Education Code 51747) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in independent study for 15 


school days or more receive the following throughout the school year: (Education Code 51747) 
 


1. For students in grades transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 3, 


opportunities for daily synchronous instruction 


 


2. For students in grades 4-8, opportunities for both daily live interaction and at least weekly 


synchronous instruction 


 


3. For students in grades 9-12, opportunities for at least weekly synchronous instruction 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that procedures for tiered reengagement strategies are 


used for all students who are not generating attendance for more than three school days or 60 


percent of the instructional days in a school week, or who are in violation of their written agreement. 


This requirement only applies to students participating in an independent study program for 15 


school days or more. The procedures shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, all of the 


following: (Education Code 51747) 


 


1. Verification of current contact information for each enrolled student 


2. Notification to parents/guardians of lack of participation within one school day of the absence 


or lack of participation 


3. A plan for outreach from the school to determine student needs, including connection with 


health and social services as necessary 


4. A clear standard for requiring a student-parent-educator conference to review a student’s 


written agreement and reconsider the independent study program’s impact on the student’s 


achievement and well-being 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan to transition students whose families wish to 


return to in-person instruction from independent study expeditiously, and, in no case later, than five 


instructional days. This requirement only applies to students participating in an independent study 


program for 15 school days or more. (Education Code 51747) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a written master agreement exists for each participating 


student as prescribed by law. (Education Code 51747, 51749.5) 


 


 


 


 


 
36/42







The district shall provide written notice to the parents/guardians of all enrolled students of the 


option to enroll their child in in-person instruction or independent study during the 2021-22 school 


year. This notice shall be posted on the district’s web site, and shall include, at a minimum, 


information about the right to request a student-parent- educator conference before enrollment, 


student rights regarding procedures for enrolling, disenrolling, and reenrolling in independent 


study, and the instructional time, including synchronous and asynchronous learning, that a student 


will have access to as part of independent study. (Education Code 51747) 


 


Upon the request of the parent/guardian of a student, before making a decision about enrolling or 


disenrolling in independent study and entering into a written agreement to do so, the district shall 


conduct a telephone, videoconference, or in-person student-parent-educator conference or other 


meeting during which the student, parent/guardian, or their advocate may ask questions about the 


educational options, including which curriculum offerings and nonacademic supports will be 


available to the student in independent study. (Education Code 51747) 


 


Master Agreement 


For the 2021–22 school year only, the district shall obtain a signed written agreement for 
independent study no later than 30 days after the first day of instruction. 
 
A written agreement shall be developed and implemented for each student participating in independent 
study for three or more consecutive school days. (Education Code 46300, 51747; 5 CCR 11703) 
 
The agreement shall include general student data, including the student's name, address, grade level, birth 
date, school of enrollment, and program placement. 
 
The independent study agreement for each participating student also shall include, but are not limited to, 
all of the following: (Education Code 51747; 5 CCR 11700, 11702) 


1. The frequency, time, place and manner for submitting the student's assignments, reporting 
the student’s academic progress, and communicating with a student’s parent/guardian 
regarding the student's academic progress 


 


2. The objectives and methods of study for the student's work and the methods used to evaluate that 


work 


 
3. The specific resources that will be made available to the student, including materials and 


personnel, and access to Internet connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the 
educational program and complete assigned work 


 
4. A statement of the Board's policy detailing the maximum length of time allowed between an 


assignment and its completion, the level of satisfactory educational progress, and the number 
of missed assignments which will trigger an evaluation of whether the student should be 
allowed to continue in independent study 


 
5. The duration of the independent study agreement, including the beginning and ending dates for 


the student's participation in independent study under the agreement, with a maximum of 
one school year 


 
6. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other measures 


of academic accomplishment appropriate to the agreement, to be earned by the student 
upon completion 


 


 


 


 
37/42







7. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to address 
the needs of students who are not performing at grade level, or need support in other 
areas, such as English learners, students with disabilities with an individualized education 
program or a Section 504 plan in order to be consistent with their program or plan, 
students in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and students requiring mental health 
supports. 


 
8. A statement that independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no student 


may be required to participate 
 


9. In the case of a suspended or expelled student who is referred or assigned to any school, 
class, or program pursuant to Education Code 48915 or 48917, a statement that instruction 
may be provided through independent study only if the student is offered the alternative 
of classroom instruction 


 
10. Before the commencement of independent study, the agreement shall be signed and dated 


by the student, the student’s parent/guardian or caregiver if the student is under age 18 years, 
the certificated employee responsible for the general supervision of independent study, and all 
persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the student. 


 
However, for the 2021-22 school year, the district shall obtain a signed written 
agreement for independent study from the student, or the student’s parent/ guardian if 
the student is less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated 
as having responsibility for the general supervision of independent study, and all persons 
who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the pupil, no later than 30 days 
after the first day of instruction. 


 


Written agreements may be signed using an electronic signature that complies with state and 
federal standards, as determined by the California Department of Education (CDE). 
(Education Code 51747) 


 
The parent/guardian's signature on the agreement shall constitute permission for the student to receive 
instruction through independent study. 


 


Course-Based Independent Study 


 
The district's course-based independent study program for students in grades K-12 shall be subject to 
the following requirements: (Education Code 51749.5) 


1. A signed learning agreement shall be completed and on file for each participating 
student pursuant to Education Code 51749.6 


 
2. Courses shall be taught under the general supervision of certificated employees who hold the 


appropriate subject matter credential and are employed by the district or by another district, 
charter school, or county office of education with which the district has a memorandum of 
understanding to provide the instruction. 


 
3. Courses shall be annually certified by Board resolution to be of the same rigor and educational 


quality and to provide intellectual challenge that is substantially equivalent to in-person, 
classroom-based instruction, and shall be aligned to all relevant local and state content 
standards. For high schools, this shall include access to all courses offered by the district 
for graduation and approved by the University of California or the California State 
University as creditable under the A-G admissions criteria. The certification shall, at a 
minimum, include the duration, number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for each 
school day that student is enrolled, number of equivalent total instructional minutes, and 
number of course credits for each course, consistent with that of equivalent classroom-based 
courses. The certification shall also include plans to provide opportunities for students in 
grades transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1-3 to receive daily synchronous 


38/42







instruction, for students in grades 4-8, to receive both daily live interaction and at least 
weekly synchronous instruction, and for students in grades 9-12 to receive at least weekly 
synchronous instruction. 


 
4. Students enrolled in independent study courses shall meet the applicable age requirements 


established pursuant to Education Code 46300.1, 46300.4, 47612, and 47612.1, and the 
applicable residency and enrollment requirements established pursuant to Education Code 
46300.2, 47612, 48204, and 51747.3. 


 
5. For each student participating in an independent study course, satisfactory educational 


progress shall be determined based on the student’s achievement and engagement in the 
independent study program, as indicated by their performance on applicable student-level 
measures of student achievement and student engagement set forth in Education Code 
52060, completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that evidence that the 
student is working on assignments, learning of required concepts, as determined by the 
supervising teacher, and progress toward successful completion of the course of study or 
individual course, as determined by the supervising teacher. 


 
If satisfactory educational progress in an independent study class is not being made, the 
teacher shall notify the student and, if the student is under age 18 years, the student’s 
parent/guardian. The teacher shall conduct an evaluation to determine whether it is in the 
student's best interest to remain in the course or whether the student should be referred to an 
alternative program, which may include, but is not limited to, a regular school program. A 
written record of the evaluation findings shall be a mandatory interim student record 
maintained for three years from the date of the evaluation. If the student transfers to another 
California public school, the record shall be forwarded to that school. 


 
Procedures for tiered reengagement strategies shall be used for all students who are not 
making satisfactory educational progress in one or more courses or who are in violation 
of the written learning agreement, as described in the section "Learning Agreement for 
Course-Based Independent Study" below. These procedures shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, the verification of current contact information for each enrolled 
student, notification to parents/guardians of lack of participation within one school day 
of the absence or lack of participation, a plan for outreach from the school to determine 
student needs, including connection with health and social services as necessary, and a 
clear standard for requiring a student-parent-educator conference to review a student’s 
written agreement and reconsider the independent study program’s impact on the 
student’s achievement and well-being. 


 


6. Examinations shall be administered by a proctor. 


7. Statewide testing results shall be reported and assigned to the school at which the student is 
enrolled and shall be included in the aggregate results of the district. Test results also shall be 
disaggregated for purposes of comparisons with the test results of students enrolled in 
classroom-based courses. 


 


8. A student shall not be required to enroll in courses included in the course-based independent 


study program. 


 
9. The student-teacher ratio in the courses in this program shall meet the requirements of 


Education Code 51745.6. 
 


10. For each student, the combined equivalent daily instructional minutes for courses in this 
program and all other courses shall meet applicable minimum instructional day requirements, 
and the student shall be offered the minimum annual total equivalent instructional minutes 
pursuant to Education Code 46200-46208. 


 
 


39/42







 
11. Courses required for high school graduation or for admission to the University of California or 


California State University shall not be offered exclusively through independent study. 


 


12. A student participating in this program shall not be assessed a fee that is prohibited by Education 


Code 49011. 


 
13. A student shall not be prohibited from participating in independent study solely on the basis 


that the student does not have the materials, equipment, or access to Internet connectivity 
necessary to participate in the course. 


 
14. A student with disabilities, as defined in Education Code 56026, shall not 


participate in course-based independent study, unless the student’s individualized 
education program specifically provides for that participation. 


 
15. A temporarily disabled student shall not receive individual instruction pursuant to 


Education Code 48206.3 through course-based independent study. 
 


16. The district shall maintain a plan to transition any student whose family wishes to 
return to in-person instruction from course-based independent study expeditiously, 
and, in no case, later than five instructional days. 
 


Learning Agreement for Course-Based Independent Study 


 
Before enrolling a student in a course within this program, the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide the student and, if the student is under age 18 years, the student’s parent/guardian with a 
written learning agreement that includes all of the following: (Education Code 51749.6) 


1. A summary of the district's policies and procedures related to course-based independent 
study pursuant to Education Code 51749.5 


 
2. The duration of the enrolled course(s) and the number of course credits for each enrolled 


course, consistent with the Board certifications made pursuant to item #2 above 


 


3. The duration of the learning agreement, which shall not exceed a school year or span multiple 


school years 


 
4. The learning objectives and expectations for each course, including, but not limited to, a 


description of how satisfactory educational progress is measured and when a student evaluation 
is required to determine whether the student should remain in the course or be referred to an 
alternative program, which may include, but is not limited to, a regular school program 


 
5. The specific resources that will be made available to the student, including materials and 


personnel, and access to Internet connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the 
educational program and complete assigned work 


 
6. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to address the 


needs of students who are not performing at grade level, or need support in other areas, 
such as English learners, students with disabilities with an individualized education 
program or a Section 504 plan in order to be consistent with their program or plan, 
students in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and students requiring mental health 
supports. 


 


 


 


 
40/42







7. A statement that enrollment is an optional educational alternative in which no student 
may be required to participate. In the case of a student who is suspended or expelled, or 
who is referred or assigned to any school, class, or program pursuant to Education Code 
48915 or 48917, the agreement also shall include the statement that instruction may be 
provided to the student through course-based independent study only if the student is 
offered the alternative of classroom instruction. 


 
8. The manner, time, frequency, and place for submitting a student’s assignments, for 


reporting the student’s academic progress, and for communicating with a student’s 
parent/guardian regarding a student’s academic progress. 


 


9. The objectives and methods of study for the student’s work, and the methods used to 


evaluate that work. 


 
10.  A statement of the adopted policies regarding the maximum length of time allowed 


between the assignment and the completion of a student’s assigned work, the level of 
satisfactory educational progress, and the number of missed assignments allowed before 
an evaluation of whether the student should be allowed to continue in course-based 
independent study. 


 
11. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other 


measures of academic accomplishment appropriate to the learning agreement, to be 
earned by the student upon completion. 


 
12. Before the commencement of an independent study course, the learning agreement shall 


be signed and dated by the student, the student’s parent/guardian or caregiver, if the 
student is less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as 
having responsibility for the general supervision of the independent study course, and all 
persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the student. For 
purposes of this paragraph “caregiver” means a person who has met the requirements of 
Family Code 6550-6552. 


 
However, for the 2021–22 school year only, the district shall obtain a signed written 
agreement for independent study from the student, or the student’s parent/guardian if 
the student is less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been 
designated as having responsibility for the general supervision of the independent study 
course, and all persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the pupil 
no later than 30 days after the first day of instruction. 


 
Written agreements may be signed using an electronic signature that complies with state 
and federal standards, as determined by the CDE. (Education Code 51749.6) 


The student's or parent/guardian's signature shall constitute permission for the student to receive 
instruction through independent study. (Education Code 51749.6) 


 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain a physical or electronic copy of the signed learning 
agreement for at least three years and as appropriate for auditing purposes. (Education Code 
51749.6) 


 


Student-Parent-Educator Conferences 


 
A student-parent-educator conference shall be held as appropriate including, but not limited to, 
as a reengagement strategy and/or if requested by a parent/guardian prior to enrollment or 
disenrollment from independent study. (Education Code 51745.5, 51747, 51749.5) 


 


 


 


 41/42







Records for Audit Purposes 


 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that records are maintained for audit purposes. These 
records shall include, but not be limited to: (Education Code 51748; 5 CCR 11703) 


1. A copy of the Board policy, administrative regulation, and other procedures related to independent 


study 


 
2. A listing of the students, by grade level, program, and school, who have participated in 


independent study, along with the units of the curriculum attempted and completed by students in 
grades K-8 and the course credits attempted by and awarded to students in grades 9-12 and adult 
education 
 


3. A file of all agreements, with representative samples of each student's work products bearing 
the supervising teacher's notations indicating that the teacher has personally evaluated the 
work or personally reviewed the evaluations made by another certificated teacher 


 
4. As appropriate to the program in which the students are participating, a daily or hourly 


attendance register that is separate from classroom attendance records, maintained on a 
current basis as time values of student work products judged by a certificated teacher, and 
reviewed by the supervising teacher if they are two different persons 


 
5. Appropriate documentation of compliance with the teacher-student ratios required 


by Education Code 51745.6 and 51749.5 (Education Code 51745.6 and 51749.5) 


 
6. Appropriate documentation of compliance with the requirements pursuant to 


Education Code 51747.5 to ensure the coordination, evaluation, and supervision of the 
independent study of each student by a district employee who possesses a valid 
certification document pursuant to Education Code 44865 or an emergency credential 
pursuant to Education Code 44300 (Education Code 51747.5) 


 


The district shall document each student’s participation in live interaction and synchronous 
instruction pursuant to Education Code 51747 on each school day, as applicable, in whole or in 
part, for which independent study is provided. A student who does not participate in 
independent study on a school day shall be documented as nonparticipatory for that school 
day. (Education Code 51747.5) 


 
The Superintendent or designee also shall maintain a written or computer-based record such as 
a grade book or summary document of student engagement, for each class, of all grades, 
assignments, and assessments for each student for independent study assignments. (Education 
Code 51747.5) 


 
The signed, dated agreement, any supplemental agreement, assignment records, work samples, 
and attendance records may be maintained on file electronically. (Education Code 51747) 


 


Program Evaluation 


 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board the number of district students 
participating in independent study, the average daily attendance generated for apportionment purposes, 
student performance as measured by standard indicators and in comparison to students in classroom-
based instruction, and the number and proportion of independent study students who graduate or 
successfully complete independent study. Based on the program evaluation, the Board and 
Superintendent shall determine areas for program improvement as needed. 


 


42/42





		Agenda 08.04.21

		5.1.1.1. SEEDS SCHS CSA Cover 2021-22

		5.1.1.1. SEEDS SCHS CSA 2021-22

		5.1.1.2. Ainsworth CSA Cover

		5.1.1.2. Ainsworth CSA 2021

		5.1.1.3. CSA Jennifer Russo Board Cover 21-22

		5.1.1.3. Jennifer Russo- CSA BV 2021-22

		5.1.1.4. Edgenuity Board Cover

		5.1.1.4. Santa Cruz Edgenuity Renewal Quote 2021-22

		5.1.1.5. WestEd PD proposal BMS Cover

		5.1.1.5. WestEd CSA 2021-22

		5.1.1.6. CSA Dr. Martha Merchant with UCSF

		5.1.1.6. CSA Dr. Martha Merchant with UCSF

		5.1.1.7. ThoughtExchange Cover

		5.1.1.7. ThoughtExchange Contract Invoice - US-INV3059

		5.2.1.1. BP Revisions brd cover

		BP 5123 Promotion Acceleration Retention

		Policy 6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

		Policy 6158 Independent Study




